
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT

Regular Board Meeting 

3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923 

May 27, 2021 
Thursday 

9:00AM 

1



  Carmel   Area   Wastewater    District 
  P.O. Box 221428 Carmel California  93922 ❖ (831) 624-1248 ❖  FAX (831) 624-0811 

Barbara Buikema 
General Manager 

Ed Waggoner 
Operations Superintendent 

Robert R. Wellington 
Legal Counsel 

Board of Directors 

Gregory D'Ambrosio 

Michael K. Rachel 

Robert Siegfried 

Charlotte F. Townsend 

Ken White 

COVID-19 Public Meeting Procedures 

As per the Governor’s Executive Order #N-29-20 (March 17, 2020) the following will 

be in effect until rescinded. 

• CAWD will not make a physical location available from which members of the 
public may observe and offer public comment.

• All CAWD public meetings shall take place via teleconferencing and shall be 
posted on the District website (www.cawd.org) and allow members of the public 
to attend and address the meeting electronically.

• The District will give advance notice of all teleconference meeting as prescribed 
by the Brown Act

• The public may listen to the meeting by logging on to the District website and 
clicking on the Virtual Webinar.

• Public comment may be submitted 24 hours prior to the meeting by clicking on 
the “Public Comment Form” listed directly beneath the Virtual Webinar on our 
website.  If received within 24 hours of the meeting we will ensure that a 
response is given at the meeting.  All participants have access during the meeting 
to be recognized and utilize the platform to speak. Please use the virtual "raised 
hand" to be acknowledged. 

• The District is requesting that the public submit comments at least 24 hours in 
advance of the scheduled meeting to enable staff to post all comment on the 
District web site.  Any comment received after this time will be posted after the 
Board meeting.

• The teleconference Board meeting will require that all voting is done by roll call

• The teleconference Board meeting will require that speakers identify themselves 
prior to addressing other attendees in order to facilitate the flow of the  meeting 
and minimize confusion.

• The District advises that the public refer to our website periodically for updates 
regarding the District and Board activity.

2

http://www.cawd.org/


3



 

 

 

 

4



 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD) 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE PENSION  

COMMITTEE MINUTES 
April 28, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. 

Via “ZOOM” 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL  The meeting commenced at 2:02 p.m.    
 
Present:  Director Michael Rachel, Trustee & Committee member 
 Director Robert Siegfried, Trustee & Committee member 

Legal Counsel, Robert Wellington, Trustee & Committee member 
General Manager, Barbara Buikema, Trustee & Committee member 
 

Absent:  None 
 

Others:  N/A 
 
 
AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
Information/Discussion Items: 
 

The Committee Discussed recommendations of Section 115 Trust options to be 
presented at the regular Board Meeting of April 29, 2021. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Committee, the meeting concluded 
at 2:20 p.m. The next Regular Board Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, April 29, 2021, or an 
alternate acceptable date, via teleconference webinar. The teleconference webinar is hosted through Zoom 
and you may receive access by visiting our website homepage, www.cawd.org, calling the District office at 
831-624-1248 or via email at downstream@cawd.org. 

As Reported To: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

APPROVED: 

________________________________________________ 
Ken White, President 

5



  
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT   

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
  Thursday, 9:00 a.m., April 29, 2021 

Teleconference Webinar 
(See California Executive Order N-29-20 during Covid-19 Pandemic) 

 
CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.  
 
Present: Directors: Greg D’ Ambrosio, Robert Siegfried, Charlotte Townsend, Michael Rachel, and 

President Ken White 
Absent: None 
 

A quorum was present.  
 
Others:     Via Zoom 

Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 
Rachél Lather, District Engineer, CAWD 
Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD 
Ed Waggoner, Plant Superintendent, CAWD 
Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent, CAWD 
Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent, CAWD 
Domine Barringer, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
Kristina Pacheco, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
Rob Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD Legal Counsel 
Peter McKee, Director, Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD) 
Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD 
Stuart MacDonald, member of the public 
Lillian Hull, Corona Road annexation supporter 
Kate Daniels, Corona Road annexation supporter 
 

1. Public Comments: 
 
No Public Comment 
 

2. Agenda Changes: 
  

No Agenda Changes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS 
The Consent Agenda consists of routine items for which Board approval can be taken with a single 
motion and vote. A Board Member may request that any item be placed on the Regular Agenda for 
separate consideration. 

 
Board Action 

After brief discussion, a motion to receive and approve was made by Director Townsend 
and seconded by Director Siegfried.  After a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously 
received and approved the following Consent Calendar/Agenda items: 

 
3. March 25, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes, April 15, 2021 Salary & Benefits 

Committee Meeting Minutes & April 20, 2021 Pension Committee Meeting Minutes 
4. Bank Statement Review by Hayashi Wayland for March 2021 
5. Schedule of Cash Receipts & Disbursements for March 2021 
6. Register of Disbursements - Carmel Area Wastewater District for March 2021 
7. Register of Disbursements – CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project for March 2021 
8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules for March 2021 
9. Collection System Superintendent’s Report for March, February & January 2021 
10. Safety and Regulatory Compliance Report for March 2021 
11. Treatment Facility Operations Report for March, February & January 2021 
12. Laboratory/Environmental Compliance Report for March 2021 
13. Capital Projects Report/Implementation Plan 
14. Project Summaries 
15. Plant Operations Report for March 2021 
16. Maintenance Projects Report for March 2021 
17. Principal Engineer Monthly Report General Engineering for March 2021 

                     
ACTION ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 
Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are acted 
upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) Public Comments, 
and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 
 
RESOLUTIONS 

 
18. Resolution No. 2021-15; Report by Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather 

 
Board Action 

After brief discussion, a motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Rachel 
and seconded by Director D’Ambrosio.  Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously 
passed Resolution 2021-15, authorizing the General Manager to invite bids for the “2021 
Pipeline Spot Repairs Project” #21-02. 
 
 
 
 

7



19. Resolution No. 2021-16; Resolution No. 2021-17 & Resolution No. 2021-18 
  Single report by Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather 

 
Brief public comment in support of the assessment district was given by Kate 
Daniels and Lillian Hull (family member & resident respectively). 
 

Board Action 
After brief discussion, a motion to approve Resolution 2021-16 was made by Director 
Siegfried and seconded by Director Rachel.  Following a Roll Call vote, the Board 
unanimously passed Resolution 2021-16, authorizing the General Manager to enter into 
agreements with residents of Corona Road to manage the consulting work to prepare 
for the formation of a Sewer Assessment District. 
 
A motion to approve Resolution 2021-17 was made by President White and seconded by 
Director Rachel.  Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2021-17, authorizing the General Manager to contract with Monterey Bay Engineers, 
Inc. for engineering services for the Corona Road Assessment District project #18-21 for 
$41,500. 
 
A motion to approve Resolution 2021-18 was made by Director Siegfried and seconded 
by Director D’Ambrosio.  Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed 
Resolution 2021-18, authorizing the General Manager to contract with Denise Duffy & 
Associates for environmental consulting services for the Corona Road Assessment 
District project #18-21 for $25,900. 
 

20. Resolution No. 2021-19; Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor 
 

Board Action 
After brief discussion, a motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Rachel 
and seconded by Director Townsend.  Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously 
passed Resolution 2021-19, adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the 
“Eucalyptus Tree Pruning” project #21-01.   
 

21. Resolution No. 2021-20; Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor 
 

Board Action 
After brief discussion, a motion to approve the resolution was made by Director 
D’Ambrosio and seconded by Director Siegfried.  Following a Roll Call vote, the Board 
unanimously passed Resolution 2021-20, authorizing a Notice of Intent to adopt a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for project #19-21 – “CRFREE Mitigation Pipeline 
Undergrounding Project” and circulate a draft MND for public comment.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



22. Resolution No. 2021-21; Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor 
 

Board Action 
After extensive discussion, a motion to approve the resolution was made by Director 
Siegfried and seconded by Director Rachel.  Following a Roll Call vote, the Board 
unanimously passed Resolution 2021-21, authorizing the General Manager to amend a 
contract with Kennedy Jenks Consultants for $26,810 for additional engineering design 
services for the “WWTP Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement” 
project #18-01. 
 

23. Resolution No. 2021-22; Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by President White and seconded by 
Director Siegfried.  Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution 
2021-22, authorizing the General Manager to invite bids for the construction of 
“Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank 
Replacement” project #18-01. 
 

24. Resolution No. 2021-23; Report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema 
 

Board Action 
A motion to table the resolution was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by 
Director Rachel.  Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously tabled Resolution 
2021-23 indefinitely. 
 

25. Resolution No. 2021-24; Report by Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather 
 

Board Action 
A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by 
Director D’Ambrosio.  Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed 
Resolution 2021-24, amending the negotiation deadline to May 17, 2021 for the General 
Manager to sign the Upper Rancho Canada Pipe Relocation project #19-13 construction 
contract. 
 

OTHER ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 

26. Municipal Service Review (MSR) and Sphere of Influence (SOI) Study by Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO); Report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema 
Board Action 
 

Board Action 
A motion to accept was made by Director Townsend and seconded by Director Rachel.  
Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously accepted the MSR and SOI study from 
LAFCO. 
 
 

9



27. Rio Road cross bore settlement agreement with the County of Monterey; Report by General 
Manager, Barbara Buikema 
 

Board Action 
After extensive discussion, a motion to remove language “may have” from the agreement 
and prepare a cover letter to the County indicating the public discussion had occurred 
during this Board meeting and the displeasure by the Board of the settlement was made 
by President White and seconded by Director Rachel.  Following a Roll Call vote, the 
motion failed 2 votes to 3. A second motion was made by Director D’Ambrosio and 
seconded by Director Siegfried to reject the settlement agreement.  Following a Roll Call 
vote, the Board unanimously voted to reject the settlement offered by the County of 
Monterey. 
 
Counsel advised for the addition of a Closed Session Agenda item for the next Regular 
Board Meeting as an item of possible litigation.   
 

28. 2021 Job Description Physical Requirements Update; Report by Maintenance 
Superintendent, Chris Foley 
 

Board Action 
A motion to accept was made by Director Rachel and seconded by Director D’Ambrosio.  
Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously accepted the job description updates.    

 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 
29. General Manager Report - oral report 

A. Taco Truck Day on May 5, 2021 at the District plant. 
B. Summary of the COVID-19 vaccine clinic, 2nd dose, on April 20, 2021 at the District 

plant. 
 
INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

30. PBCSD March Board meeting was cancelled so no report given. 
 
31. Special District Association Meeting of April 20, 2021 – Report by General Manager, Barbara 

Buikema 
 
32. Pension Committee Meeting of April 20, 2021 – Report by General Manager, Barbara 

Buikema 
 

33. Announcements on subjects of interest to the Board made by members of the Board or Staff     
     

• The General Manager from PBCSD expressed gratitude to CAWD and the aid given 
during a recent crisis that left them short staffed.  
 

• Director Rachel is scheduled to attend the April 30, 2021 PBCSD Board meeting and 
Director Siegfried is scheduled to attend the May 28, 2021 PBCSD Board meeting. 

10



 
• Director Townsend is scheduled to attend the July 20, 2021 Special Districts Association 

of Monterey County meeting. 
 

• President White and Director Townsend are scheduled to attend the Reclamation 
Management Committee meeting on May 11, 2021. 

 
34. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the President adjourned the meeting 
at 10:45 a.m. The next Regular Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, May 27, 2021, or an 
alternate acceptable date, via teleconference webinar.  The teleconference webinar is hosted 
through Zoom and you may receive access by visiting our website, www.cawd.org, calling the 
District office at 831-624-1248 or via email at downstream@cawd.org.  
 

As Reported To: 

____________________________________________________ 
Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

APPROVED: 

________________________________________________ 
Ken White, President 

11

http://www.cawd.org/
mailto:downstream@cawd.org


12



13



Capital Compensated Defend or COUNTY Chase Chase
Capital Improvement General O & M Accruals Managed  Retreat Total Fund Bank O & M Bank PR L.A.I.F.
Fund Reserve Fund Reserve Reserve Balance Balance Balance Balance

BALANCE BEGINNING OF MONTH $6,701,472 $17,085,499 $10,897,624 $245,477 $3,000,000 $37,930,071 $274,818 $116,824 $1,193,588

Receipts:
   User Fees 3,121,208
   Property Taxes 787,629
   PBCSD Treatment Fees 
   Reclamation O & M reimbursement
   Reclamation capital billing
   Permits 1,045
   PBCSD capital billing
   Other misc. revenue
   Interest income 83,101 1,304
   Connection Fees
   CCLEAN receipts 7,500
   CRFree Project grant funds
   CSRMA PLP ins. dividend
   Yankee Point Study deposit
   Void checks-replace lost check 139
        Total Receipts 0 787,629 3,204,309 0 0 3,991,938 8,545 139 1,304

Fund Transfers:
   Transfers to Chase Bank O&M (204,783) (395,217) 600,000
   Transfers to Chase Bank PR (215,000) 215,000
   Transfer from Chase Bank Defined Benefit
   Intra-fund transfers for capital expenditures
   Rebalance Capital and O&M Reserves
        Total Transfers (204,783) 0 (395,217) 0 0 (600,000) 385,000 215,000 0

Disbursements:
   Operations and capital 524,781
   Payroll & payroll taxes 217,602
   Employee Dental reimbursements 932
   CALPERS EFT 34,968
   CAWD SAM pension EFT 0
   CAWD pension loans EFT 587
   Home Depot EFT 269
   US Bank EFT 10,873
   Deferred comp contributions EFT 11,966 0
   PEHP contributions EFT 3,158 0
   Bank/ADP fees 0 499
   Highlands Bond Debt Service Payment
   Annual County admin billing fee 25,481
   Unfunded CALPERS liability
   GASB 68 report fee & SSA 218 fee
         Total Disbursements 0 0 25,481 0 0 25,481 587,536 218,101 0

BALANCE END OF MONTH 6,496,689 17,873,128 13,681,235 245,477 3,000,000 41,296,529 80,827 113,862 1,194,892

Carmel Area Wastewater District
Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - APRIL 2021

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



 
STAFF REPORT   
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 
 
DATE:            May 27, 2021  
         
SUBJECT: Monthly Report – April  
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
 
       
Permits Issued 
 
Sewer Lateral Permits issued in April                                   .......................                           24 
 
Total Fees     ....................................................................................................... $3,960.00 
 
 
 
Maintenance  
Attached is a map of the areas cleaned and Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) inspected in 
past three months. There was 64,466 feet of sewer lines cleaned, 12,623 feet of (CCTV) 
inspections, and 130 manhole inspections were performed during the month of April.  
 
 
Recent Line Cleaning Summary 

Cleaning period Footage 
Cleaned 

Percentage Cleaned Size of Pipe Cleaned 

April 64,466 ft. 15.67% 6 – 15 inches 
March 42,977 ft. 10.45% 6 - 10 inches 

February 50,669 ft. 12.32% 6 – 12 inches 
 

 

 

46



Annual Line Cleaning Graph 
 

 
 
 

Line Cleaning Table 

Total Target Amount 
(Linear Feet) 

Cumulative Complete 
(Linear Feet) 

Remaining (Linear Feet) 

615,000 (in 2021) 208,300 406,700 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47



CCTV Progress Graph (River Watch Settlement Agreement Target) 
 

 
 
CCTV Table 
 
Total Required 
amount (Linear Feet) 

Cumulative Complete 
(Linear Feet) 

Remaining (Linear Feet) 

408,672  255,482 153,190 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48



 
Manhole Inspection Progress Graph (Riverwatch Settlement Agreement Target) 
 

 
 
Manhole Inspection Table 

Total Required Amount 
(Manholes) 

Actual Complete 
(Manholes) 

Remaining                  
(Manholes) 

1434 840 594 
 
 
Construction activities 

• Contractors removed the concrete vaults and exposed the force main and Air 
Release Valve  (ARV) so a condition assessment of the Districts ARV and valving 
could be completed.  The condition assessment will be used for a future project to 
upgrade the ARV’s and valving along Highway 1.  

 
Staff Development 

• Staff completed several online safety trainings and in person tail gate training.  
 
 
 

49



General comments 
• Staff continues to practice social distancing with other staff and contractors, driving 

to locations throughout the District in separate vehicles. Staff is educated on the best 
practices of personal protective equipment (PPE) and personal hygiene. Staff has 
been cleaning and sanitizing buildings, equipment, and vehicles daily as part of their 
routine duties. 

  
 
Service calls responded to by crew 
 

Date Time Callout Resolution 
4/1/2021 3:38 PM ARV (Air Release Valve) 

leaking 
Called by State Parks for a leak on an 
ARV vault on Highway 1 in front of 
the Hudson House. Staff found the 
leak to be from the ARV on the State 
Parks force main. Staff vacuumed out 
the vault and closed a valve to stop the 
leak.  

4/9/2021 11:15 PM Power Fail Power outage at Bay & Scenic, Monte 
Verde & 16th and 8th & Scenic pump 
stations. Staff monitored station until 
power was restored. 

4/23/2021 12:33 PM Toilet Bubble Called by homeowner for a toilet 
bubble. Staff informed homeowner that 
the bubble is from the crew cleaning in 
the area. Staff can prevent the bubbling 
if we know in advance to vent the 
lateral. Staff added the home to the 
vent prior to clean map. 

 
USA Location Requests – 127 
Plumbing permit inspections – 22 
Private Sewer Lateral Compliance Certificates Issued – 26 
 
 
FUNDING 
N/A  

50



5/10/2021

51

lauer
Text Box
April (Red)              12,623 feetMarch (Yellow)       13,991 feetFebruary (Green)   12,199 feet              Monthly CCTV Map



5/10/2021

52

lauer
Text Box
April (Red)              64,466 feetMarch (Yellow)       42,977 feetFebruary (Green)   50,669 feet                              Monthly Cleaning Map



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Mark Dias, Safety and 

Regulatory Compliance Administrator 
 
Date:  May 27, 2021 
 
Subject: Monthly Safety Report (for April 2021) 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Safety & Training 
 

• April 29- Tailgate training. Mark Dias, Safety and Compliance Administrator (S/C 
Admin Dias) gave a tailgate training on the use of portable Ground Fault Circuit 
Interruption (GFCI) units. These portable units are to be used where moisture and 
water are encountered while using portable electric equipment like pumps, tools, 
lights, etc. Emphasis was placed making sure to plug the GFCI units directly into 
the socket and then any extension cords and equipment downstream of the GFCI 
unit. It is also a requirement to test the unit each time before use.  This training was 
given as part of the new GFCI Program which is discussed in the section below. 
 

Ongoing Safety Improvements 
During April, Maintenance Superintendent Chris Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to 
implement safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and the Safety 
Committee.  Activities during April included:  
 

• New Voluntary Ground Fault Circuit Interruption Program. The treatment plant 
and lift stations inherently have large numbers of water-exposed areas and spaces. 
These locations are routinely subject to rain, mists, summer drizzle, condensation, 
sprays and leaks. In addition, many rooms, floors, decks and surfaces are regularly 
washed down. Temporary electrical connections (i.e., extension cords and power 
tool cords) are used in these wet areas to power portable pumps, tools, lighting and 
other portable equipment. The combination of cords lying on wet surfaces increases 

  

53



the chance of shorting or shock. While best practice has always been to use portable 
GFCI units, this program was established to formalize and highlight the correct 
procedures and better inform employees which outlets need portable GFCI 
protection.     

Cal OSHA already requires employers to provide proper GFCI protected 
receptacles (i.e., outlets) in indoor spaces such as bathrooms, kitchens and other 
indoor areas with sinks. Compliant receptacles were previously installed per code 
and in 2020 the receptacles in the lab were upgraded with new GFCI outlets. 

For other water-exposed areas and spaces, CAWD will continue to 
systematically implement engineering controls to replace non-GFCI receptacles or 
circuits with permanent GFCI equipment. This has been occurring during routine 
rehabilitation tasks.  

Until such time as all water-exposed areas have had permanent GFCI 
receptacles or circuits installed, the new program will help provide an additional 
level of safety. All outlets that do not yet have permanent GFCI circuits already 
installed will be labeled “GFCI Required” and portable GFCI units will be stored 
nearby.  

 
Tours and Outreach 
 

• Tours. All tours remain on hold per current health orders and school closures. 
 
Injuries; First Aid Incidents; Workers’ Compensation Claims 
There were no first aid injuries or Workers’ Compensation claims in April. The most recent 
tracking matrix for 2021 is below. 
 

 Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2021 Reporting Year  

TYPE 

New  
Incidents 
(Month) 

Total  
Incidents 

(Year) 

Total Days Away 
from Work 

(Year) 

Total Days of Job 
Restriction 

(Year) 

Cumulative days 
lost  

(Year) 
OSHA 
Injuries 

0 0 0 0 0 

OSHA 
Illnesses 

0 0 0 0 0 

Other WC 
Claims 

0 1 0 0 0 

First Aid 
(non-OSHA) 

0 0 0 0 0 

 
FUNDING 
 
N/A- Informational item only 

54



% of Total MG

68.714 99.49

31.286 45.39

100.00 144.89

88.944 102.88

11.594 45.88

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1453.87 N/A N/A N/A

1984.84 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

1920.96 1852.00

 Reclamation Total                                     

179,881.40 35,103.73$   17,309.41$   

2021

14,513.85$                             

1878.67

44,094.93$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1583.65

1943.44

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.142

0.204

444.44

8.64 BG (26.52 K acre-ft.)

1.251

305.20

315.59

0.000

Feb'21

139.24

140.75

0.000

345.51 MG (1060.38 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.043

0.830

Mar'21

0.414

19,675.11$   

0.163$           

51,405.60

24,516.63$   23,505.05$   

18,806.56$                            

9,180.31$     

0.230$           15,433.92$                            

15,428.62$   

MF/RO

102.89MG (315.60acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-20)                 

8,129.10$     

7,945.21$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

April 2021

30.749

0.134

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

22,833

Jan'21

2020

Accumulated Totals

25,957.26$                            

85,400.00

95,956.00

94,481.40

23,035.74$                            

Feb '21

8,318.61$     

15,204.40$                            

12,382.80$                            

1,009,589.00

27,587.20$                            

7,150.70$                              

31,694

Jan '21

21,019

2 QTR

14,362.85$                            

Mar '21Apr '21 kW-h 

29,796.77$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

29,055

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.739 0.837

2021 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

10.816

34.571

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

4.008

CAWD Total          

16,198.02$   

0.304

Apr'21

0.000

0.79123.755

Monthly Totals

1.152

0.361

0.097

1.025

Apr'21 kWh

0.165$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2021)                      

147,361.60

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.156$           

CAWD Total

CAWD 2064.85

15,090.53$                            

8,495.11$     

Reclamation

1445.00 1434.66

Reclaim Total

15,009.94$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

55



Month

May 20

Jun 20

Jul 20

Aug 20

Sep 20

Oct 20

Nov 20

Dec 20

Jan 21

Feb 21

Mar 21

Apr 21

Totals

Average

0.000

5.000

10.000

15.000

20.000

25.000

30.000

35.000

40.000

45.000

May 20 Jun 20 Jul 20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

5.000

10.000

15.000

20.000

25.000

30.000

35.000

40.000

May 20 Jun 20 Jul 20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

May 20 Jun 20 Jul 20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21 Apr 21

Total Golf Course Usage Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

56



% of Total MG

71.501 75.74

28.499 34.58

100.00 110.32

38.542 72.13

67.111 41.88

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1453.87 N/A N/A N/A

1984.84 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

1920.96 1852.00

 Reclamation Total                                   

94,293.00 17,309.41$   29,796.77$   

2021

14,998.21$                             

1878.67

26,837.83$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1583.65

1943.44

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.150

1.933

338.39

8.61 BG (26.43 K acre-ft.)

1.472

232.33

221.27

0.000

Jan'21

106.06

128.45

0.000

330.82 MG (1015.28 acre-ft.)

0.000

0.978

0.268

Feb'21

0.436

8,129.10$     

0.205$           

50,147.12

23,035.74$   24,516.63$   

16,496.43$                            

14,362.85$   

0.164$           15,204.40$                            

9,180.31$     

MF/RO (2)

72.14MG (221.28acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-20)                 

15,433.92$   

7,150.70$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

March 2021

13.835

0.777

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

21,019

Dec'20

2020

Accumulated Totals

23,941.46$                            

49,535.00

93,461.00

44,758.00

25,957.26$                            

Jan '21

7,945.21$     

16,305.46$                            

13,365.15$                            

977,895.00

29,670.61$                            

7,445.03$                              

29,055

Dec'20

24,832

2 QTR

12,382.80$                            

Feb '21Mar '21 kW-h 

27,587.20$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

22,833

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.700 1.036

2021 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

10.230

35.896

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

24.090

CAWD Total          

15,090.53$   

0.278

Mar'21

0.000

0.82825.666

Monthly Totals

1.158

0.330

0.105

0.814

Mar '21 kWh

0.166$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2021)                      

143,608.12

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.173$           

CAWD Total

CAWD 2064.85

18,806.56$                            

8,318.61$     

Reclamation

1445.00 1434.66

Reclaim Total

16,198.02$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

57



Month

Apr 20

May 20

Jun 20

Jul 20

Aug 20

Sep 20

Oct 20

Nov 20

Dec 20

Jan 21

Feb 21

Mar 21

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Jul 20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Jul 20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Jul 20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan 21 Feb 21 Mar 21

Total Golf Course Usage Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

58



% of Total MG

64.239 50.07

35.761 24.35

100.00 74.42

84.183 58.30

17.929 17.79

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for

Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.

CAWD 2064.85

16,496.43$                            

7,945.21$     

Reclamation

1445.00 1434.66

Reclaim Total

15,090.53$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.142$           

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2021)                      

152,241.36

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.157$           

CAWD Total

Feb'21

0.000

0.84123.536

Monthly Totals

1.309

0.468

0.108

1.102

Feb '21 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

13.102

36.638

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, 

MG

6.569

CAWD Total          

18,806.56$   

0.318

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.696 0.976

2021 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

22,833

Nov '20

25,327

2 QTR

13,365.15$                            

Jan '21Feb '21 kW-h 

29,670.61$                            

kW-h Per Acre Foot

21,019

Dec '20

7,150.70$     

17,314.64$                            

12,688.58$                            

948,840.00

30,003.22$                            

7,671.12$                              

24,832

Nov'20

2020

Accumulated Totals

24,924.90$                            

88,260.00

96,112.00

96,020.08

23,941.46$                            

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for:               

February 2021

30.843

0.235

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

MF/RO

58.30MG (178.84acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-20)                 

15,204.40$   

7,445.03$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kW-h

15,433.92$   

0.150$           

56,129.36

25,957.26$   23,035.74$   

17,253.78$                            

12,382.80$   

0.175$           16,305.46$                            

14,362.85$   

Dec'20

74.68

54.56

0.000

323.34 MG (992.33 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.014

0.871

Jan'21

0.608

1.191

0.567

228.28

8.60 BG (26.39 K acre-ft.)

1.584

153.60

178.83

0.000

38,619.56$                            

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1583.65

1943.44

1 QTR 3 QTR

1920.96 1852.00

 Reclamation Total                                      

184,280.08 29,796.77$   27,587.20$   

2021

14,212.95$                             

1878.67

59



Month

Mar 20

Apr 20

May 20

Jun 20

Jul 20

Aug 20

Sep 20

Oct 20

Nov 20

Dec 20

Jan 21

Feb 21

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Jul 20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan 21 Feb 21

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Jul 20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan 21 Feb 21

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Jul 20 Aug 20 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov 20 Dec 20 Jan 21 Feb 21

Total Golf Course Usage Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

60



STAFF REPORT  
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Ray De Ocampo - Laboratory/Environmental 

Compliance Supervisor 
 

Date:             May 27, 2021 
 
Subject: Monthly Report – April 2021 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report - Informational only; No action required. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
LABORATORY REPORT 

 
• Biobot Analytics continues to provide COVID-19 analysis for CAWD composite 

samples of the Influent Pump Station. Biobot samples are available upon request 
and can also be viewed on the CAWD website.  

• Laboratory Staff began a special project requested by the Plant Superintendent and 
Plant Engineer.  Lab Staff set up discrete sampling to collect individual hourly 
samples of the Secondary and Primary Effluent for twenty-four hours.  The 
sampling event was for one month and collected on a weekly schedule. The analysis 
performed will be Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD), Chemical Oxygen Demand 
(COD), Total Organic Carbon (TOC), and Ammonia- Nitrogen (NH3-N).  The data 
will be submitted to the Plant Superintendent when the sampling has been 
completed. 

• The CCLEAN (Central Coast Long-Term Environmental Assessment Network) 
sampling for wet season ended on April 8, 2021 and CCLEAN staff collected the 
sample.  The results will be provided by Applied Marine Sciences when it is 
completed. 

• On April 15, 2021, CWEA had notified Laboratory Analyst Trevor Weidner-Holland 
that he had been selected as the winner of CWEA’s 2021 Crystal Crucible award.  He 
will be receiving a certificate and pin for the award and the announcement will be 
made during the 2021 CWEA Annual Conference in June 2021. 

 
 

  

61

https://www.cawd.org/biobot-analytics-weekly-reports-of-concentration-levels-sars-cov-2


 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 
 

• Staff was limited to inspections for the month, while working on the laboratory 
special primary and secondary effluent project stated earlier in this report. 
  
 

Restaurant Inspection Table 
 

Restaurant 
 

Compliant 
Reason for Non-

Compliance 
 

Comments 
Il Fornaio Yes   
Carmel Grill House Yes   
    
 

Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspection Table 
Grocery 

Store/Delicatessen 
 

Compliant 
Reason for Non-

Compliance 
 

Comments 
    
 

Restaurant Compliance Table 
Month Maintenance Mechanical 

February 2021 100% 99% 
March 2021 100% 100% 

          April 2021 100% 100% 
 
FUNDING – N/A – Informational item only 

62



Project 
Number

GL Task Name Manager Start Finish Current FY 
Budget

Cumulative 
Budget

Status

Projects Implementation Plan Schedule 4/16/18 7/1/40 $0 $0

Treatment Plant Projects 4/30/18 6/30/26 $0 $0

18-01 1620.000 Mech/Elec Rehab and Sludge 
Holding Tank Replacement Project

Treanor 4/30/18 7/25/23 $2,905,000 $10,616,000 Bid Phase

18-05 5858.004 PLC/SCADA Programming Foley 10/8/18 6/30/21 $240,000 $364,715 SCADA Screens 70%
Complete

18-08 1629.000 Standby Power Reliability Project Treanor/Foley 10/8/18 12/23/20 $450,000 $469,202 Complete

18-11 1611.000 Microturbine Integration Project Treanor/Foley 6/4/19 6/30/21 $100,000 $676,000 Test 30 kW

19-01 1630.000 Onsite Flood Mitigations (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Waggoner 7/1/19 6/29/21 $65,000 $86,000 Minor Work Proceeding

18-28 1626.000 Perimeter Tree Plan and 
Implementation

Treanor 7/1/19 6/30/26 $0 $213,000 Determining Tree Types /
Final Landscape Plan for

Interior

21-01 5982.004 WWTP Eucalyptus Pruning Treanor 7/1/20 2/1/22 $0 $180,000 Biological Surveys /
Pending Bidding in

Non-Nesting Season

19-21 1993.000 Carmel River FREE Mitigation Treanor 6/1/20 11/30/22 $0 $0 Design/CEQA/
Developing Funding

Agreement

21-03 Cathodic Protection Testing Treanor 7/1/20 6/29/21 $30,000 $30,000 Testing Complete -
Evaluation of Results

Pending

19-19 1634.000 Aeration Basin Improvements Waggoner 7/1/20 6/30/21 $40,000 $127,000 Materials Onsite Pending
Installation in June

20-03 6799.006 Treatment COVID Improvements Foley 7/1/20 6/30/21 $50,000 $50,000 Complete 

Treatment Plant Studies & O&M 
Manuals

Treanor 5/1/20 5/2/22 $0 $255,000

20-02 5500.006 WWTP Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 
Update

Treanor 6/1/20 4/30/21 $35,000 $35,000 Complete 

5500.006 Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan Treanor 5/1/20 4/30/21 $150,000 $1,200,000 Draft Submitted to
Coastal Commission

5500.006 Long Term SLR Planning Treanor 5/3/21 5/2/22 $150,000 $1,550,000 Inactive

Reclamation Projects 7/2/18 6/30/22 $0 $580,000

18-26 14777 RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and 
Containment

Treanor 1/1/19 6/1/22 $290,000 $358,506 Bidding in August

Reclamation Line Cathodic 
Protection Testing

Treanor 1/28/22 6/30/22 $0 $40,000 Inactive

Reclamation Studies Treanor 7/2/18 6/1/22 $0 $65,000

69200 Trussell MF/RO Performance Review Treanor 7/2/18 6/30/21 $30,000 $115,000 In Study Phase

Reclamation 15-Year Asset Management 
Assessment

Treanor 7/1/21 6/1/22 $0 $35,000 Inactive

Collections Projects 4/16/18 7/1/40 $0 $8,139,000

19-02 Pretreatment Ordinance Lather 11/15/19 5/14/21 $0 $0 Scheduling Committee
Review

19-03 1586.000 Carmel Meadows Sewer 
Replacement

Lather 8/1/19 1/19/23 $185,445 $1,259,102 In Design / CEQA

19-13 1625.000 Upper Rancho Canada Pipe 
Relocation

Lather 7/1/19 10/29/21 $1,760,000 $1,822,991 Construction Starting
June 14th

20-04 6799.005 Collections COVID Improvements Foley 7/1/20 6/30/21 $50,000 $50,000 Complete

h/Elec Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project

DA Programming

ability Project

croturbine Integration Project

od Mitigations (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

WWTP Eucalyptus Pruning

Carmel River FREE Mitigation

Cathodic Protection Testing

Aeration Basin Improvements

Treatment COVID ImprovementsTreatment COVID ImprovementsTreatment COVID Improvements

Treatment Plant Studies & O&M Manuals

WWTP Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan Update

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan

Long Term SLR Planning

O Pretreatment Acid Tanks and Containment

Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection Testin

Reclamation Studies

erformance Review

Reclamation 15-Year Asset Management Assessment

Pretreatment Ordinance

Carmel Meadows Sewer Replacement

Upper Rancho Canada Pipe Relocation

Collections COVID Improvements

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2020 2021 2022

63



Project 
Number

GL Task Name Manager Start Finish Current FY 
Budget

Cumulative 
Budget

Status

19-08 1632.000 Carmel Valley Manor Pipeline and 
Pump Station

Lather 7/3/18 12/10/21 $0 $0 Design by Owner
Construction Planned
Upon Completion of

Annexation

20-07 1636.000 Bay/Scenic Pump Station 
Rehabilitation

Lather 12/31/20 7/7/23 $100,000 $600,000 In Design

20-08 1635.000 Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - Ocean to 
Bay

Lather 2/5/21 6/30/22 $200,000 $1,400,000 In Design

21-02 2021 Pipeline Spot Repairs Lather 7/1/21 7/1/22 $0 $150,000 Design In House

21-04 Manhole Rehabilitation Lather 7/1/21 7/1/22 $0 $150,000 Design In House

20-05 River Watch Agreement Lather 2/21/20 2/21/24 $0 $0 Work In Progress

20-06 Collections 20-Year CIP Lather 7/1/20 7/1/40 $0 $29,489,616 Work In Progress

Assessment Districts/Annexations Lather 8/2/18 3/1/23 $0 $105,000

19-09 5500.005 2020 Sphere of Influence Amendment and 
Annexation Proposal 

Lather 3/15/19 7/30/21 $0 $50,000 Pending Recording By
CA State

18-21 1631.000 Corona Road Assessment District Lather 8/2/18 9/2/21 $0 $0 Pending Board Approval
of Design Engineer

19-05 Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection Lather 8/2/18 9/2/21 $0 $0 Pending Annexation

19-04 Carmel Highlands Sewer Collection System 
Expansion – Yankee Point and Otter Cove

Lather 3/11/21 3/1/23 $0 $0 In Study Phase

Administration Projects 6/9/20 12/22/20 $0 $50,000

20-01 1633.000 Administration Building COVID 
Control Improvements

Treanor/Foley 6/9/20 12/22/20 $75,000 $75,000 Complete

nor Pipeline and Pump Stationnor Pipeline and Pump Station

Bay/Scenic Pump Station RehabilitationBay/Scenic Pump Station Rehabilitation

Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - Ocean to Bay

2021 Pipeline Spot Repairs

Manhole Rehabilitation

River Watch AgreementRiver Watch Agreement

Collections 20-Year CIPCollections 20-Year CIP

Assessment Districts/Annexations

ence Amendment and Annexation Proposal 

Assessment District

nnexation/Connection

Carmel Highlands Sewer Collection System Expansion – Yankee Po

istration Building COVID Control Improvements

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2020 2021 2022

64



 
Photo: Existing Headworks Motor Control Center to Be 

Replaced in Project 
  
Project Number: 18-01 
Project Name: WWTP - Mech/Elec Rehab & 

Sludge Holding Tank Replacement 
Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Bid Phase 
Project 
Description: 

The WWTP Rehabilitation Phase II 
Project is a multi-area project at 
the WWTP aimed at mitigating risk 
of failure in the Influent Pump 
Station, Headworks, 3W/Chlorine 
Analyzer Building, Effluent Building 
and Sludge Storage Tank. Most of 
the work involves replacing aged 
electrical and mechanical 
equipment in existing buildings. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$10,616,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$882,574 

FY Budget: 
$2,905,000 

FY Spent: 
$12,702 

Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 4% of project cost. 
Actual share TBD based on 
Construction Costs. 

Other Entities: Pebble Beach Community Services 
District, CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation 
Project 

Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification 
Challenges: Electrical Cutover Coordination 
Schedule: • Construction anticipated for 

2020 through 2021 
Consultants: Design: Kennedy/Jenks Consultants  

Construction Management: TBD 
Contractor: TBD 

 

 

 
Photo: DAFT SCADA Overview 

  
Project Number: 18-05 
Project Name: Programmable Logic Controller 

(PLC) and Supervisory Control 
and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
Programming Project 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Foley 
Status: SCADA Screens 70% complete 
Project 
Description: 

During the Phase 1 project a new 
SCADA software package from 
Inductive Automation was 
installed to parallel the existing 
system. This project includes the 
migration of the remaining SCADA 
screens from the legacy system to 
the new system. The PLC code is 
also being updated to the CAWD 
standards that are being 
developed during this project. 
This project is necessary to 
replace obsolete software and 
hardware so that the automated 
controls, alarms, and reporting 
remain accurate and reliable.  

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$364,715 
Cumulative Spent: 
$169,856 

FY Budget: 
$240,000 

FY Spent: 
$66,285 

Reclamation Share: Partial Reclamation  

Schedule: • Existing SCADA to be migrated 
in FY 20/21. 

Consultants: Frisch Engineering 
  

65



 
Photo: New Standby Generator 

  
Project Number: 18-08 

Project Name: Standby Power Reliability Project 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project 
Manager: 

Treanor/Foley 

Status: Complete 
Project 
Description: 

This project involves purchasing a 
trailer mounted 500kW generator to 
serve as a full back up to the existing 
standby system in case the existing 
750kW generator were to fail. The 
Main Switchgear would be 
reprogrammed to run off one 
generator with a standby (instead of 
the current split bus system). This 
would allow removal of the existing 
450kW generator (which has 
obsolete controls and only powers 
half the main Switchgear). 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$469,202 
Cumulative Spent: 
$374,154 

FY Budget: 
$450,000 

FY Spent: 
$354,952 

Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 
Permits 
Required: 

Air Board Permit 

Challenges: N/A 
Schedule: • Design to be completed in 2019  

• Completed in Dec 2020 
Consultants: Beecher Engineering 

Contractor: Quinn Power Systems 
Bryan Mailey Electric 

 

 
Photo: Existing Gas Conditioning System 

  
Project Number: 18-11 
Project Name: Microturbine Integration Project 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor/Foley 
Status: Test 30kW 
Project 
Description: 

Overhaul of existing gas 
conditioning system and controls 
for the microturbines. The existing 
gas conditioning system has been 
having repeated mechanical 
failures which reduces the amount 
of time the Microturbines are in 
service. Significant overhaul of 
controls is needed to integrate the 
new 65kW turbine. CAWD is 
looking into a new gas conditioning 
system in case the existing system 
is not sufficient to treat the gas 
after the larger 65kW turbine is 
placed in service.   

Department: Treatment   
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$676,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$55,114 

FY Budget: 
$100,000 

FY Spent: 
$34,333 

Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: Air Board Permit 
Challenges: Complexity of System 
Schedule: • Ongoing 

Consultants: Frisch Engineering (programming) 
Contractor: TBD 

  

66



 
Photo: Areas of Potential Annexation  

  
Project Number: 18-21, 19-04, 19-05, 19-09 
Project Name: 2020 CAWD Sphere of Influence 

(SOI) Amendment & Annexation 
Proposal 

Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lathér 
Status: Pending Recording by CA State 
Project 
Description: 

The project will provide access for 
homes and businesses currently on 
septic systems and add 
approximately 350 connections to 
the District at build-out.  Interested 
areas include Corona Road, Riley 
Ranch, Carmel Valley Manor and 
Yankee Point & Otter Cove. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$105,000 (55K+50K) 
Cumulative Spent: 
$51,767 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$26,527 

** No Budget included for Annexations b/c costs will be 
recouped through annexation fees. 
Permits 
Required: 

Environmental Review, LAFCO 
Annexation Approval 

Challenges: #18-21 Getting homeowner groups 
to form a Corona Road Assessment 
District to pay for infrastructure that 
is needed to connect to our sewer 
system. 

Schedule:  LAFCO annexation hearing on 3-22-
21.  Approved with zero protests. 

Consultant: Denise Duffy & Associates 
 

 
Photo: Existing totes used for Sulfuric Acid storage and 

Feed  
  
Project Number: 18-26 
Project Name: RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and 

Containment 
Project Location: Reclamation – MF/RO 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Bidding in August 
Project 
Description: 

Code compliance upgrades for 
existing acid chemical storage and 
feed system used by Reclamation 
for enhancing RO recovery. Project 
includes code compliant secondary 
containment and separation of 
dissimilar chemicals. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$358,506 
Cumulative Spent: 
$68,506 

FY Budget: 
$290,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation 
Share: 

100% 

Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification 
Challenges: N/A 
Schedule: • Bid second half of 2020 

• Construction 2021 
Consultants: Trussell Technologies, Inc 
Contractor: TBD 

  

67



 

Photo: Eucalyptus trees on South Side of Treatment Plant 
  
Project Number: 18-28 
Project Name: Perimeter Tree Plan and 

Implementation 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Determining Tree Types / Final 

Landscape Plan for Interior 
Project 
Description: 

Planning and landscaping around 
the treatment plant.  This will 
include looking into possibly 
replacing the non-native eucalyptus 
trees around the perimeter of the 
treatment plant with native tree 
species.  The project will start with 
a study and a plan to determine 
costs, sequencing schedule, and 
visual impacts. The eucalyptus trees 
around the plant have ongoing 
maintenance costs which may be 
offset in the long term with 
different type of tree screening.  
Purpose is to improve security 
around plant perimeter.  

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$213,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$2,897                 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation: N/A 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: Currently unknown (In Study Phase) 

Challenges: Time it will take for new trees to 
grow up that will fully screen 
treatment plant from view 

Schedule: • Study to occur in 2021 
Consultants: Scott Hall Landscape Design 

Contractor: TBD 
 

 
Photo: Old Flood Door in Headworks Basement 

  
Project Number: 19-01 

Project Name: Critical Process Onsite Flood  
Mitigations 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Waggoner 
Status: Minor Work Proceeding 
Project 
Description: 

There are a few areas of the WWTP 
that may be vulnerable to 
inundation during a 100-year river 
flooding event. Although the actual 
impact to the process in the event 
of inundation of these areas may 
be minor, it would be prudent to 
mitigate any possible impacts of 
flooding on the treatment process. 
The areas that could be further 
adapted to avoid flooding 
inundation are: Headworks 
Basement Flood Door, Influent 
Access Hatch, Secondary Effluent 
Diversion Structure Hatches, 
Chlorine Contact Channel Hatches, 
Waste Gas Burner Operations. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$86,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$21,788                 

FY Budget: 
$65,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation 
Share: 

15% Reclamation 

Other Entities: Reclamation Project 
Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification 
Challenges: N/A 
Schedule: • Planning performed in 2019 

• Modifications in 2021 
Consultants: N/A 
Contractor: TBD 

  

68



 
 
  
Project Number: 19-02  
Project Name: Pretreatment Ordinance 
Project Location: Pretreatment/Collections 
Project Manager: Lathér/De Ocampo/Waggoner 
Status: Scheduling Committee Review 

Project 
Description: 

Prepare a Pre-Treatment 
Ordinance that is in compliance 
with the current standard of 
practice and the State Water 
Resources requirements. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$0 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0                 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: N/A 
Challenges: None 
Schedule: • Committee review of 

Ordinance pending 
Consultants: None 
Contractor: None 

 

 

 
Photo: View gravity pipe in Carmel easement  

  
Project Number: 19-03 
Project Name: Carmel Meadows Sewer 

Replacement  
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lathér 
Status: In Design / CEQA 
Project 
Description: 

The project will replace 1300 feet of 
Ductile Iron Pipe (DIP) on an aerial 
span and eight manholes by 
constructing a small pump station 
at the end of Mariposa Drive. This 
project is located on an easement 
parallel to Ribera Road and was 
originally installed in the early 
1960's. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$1,259,102 
Cumulative Spent: 
$332,143                 

FY Budget: 
$185,445 

FY Spent: 
$105,607 

Permits Required: Coastal Permit and Environmental 
Review 

Challenges: Redirecting the sewer to the pump 
station without requiring booster 
pumps for individual houses. 

Schedule: Design FY20/21.  Construct 
FY21/22. 

Consultants: SRT Consultants 
Contractor: TBD 

  

69



 

Photo: Entrance to Carmel Valley Manor 
  
Project Number: 19-08 
Project Name: Carmel Valley Manor Pipeline 

and Pump Station 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lathér 
Status: Design by Owner – Construction 

Planned upon Completion of 
Annexation             

Project Description: Sewer extension project to be 
completed by the owners of 
Carmel Valley Manor to connect 
to CAWD’s sewer system.  

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative 

Budget: 
$0 

Cumulative Spent: 
$180 

FY Budget: 
$0 

FY Spent: 
$180 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities:  
Permits Required: County Encroachment Permit, 

Environmental Review in 
process 

Challenges: Funding, Repayment 
Agreement, LAFCO annexation 

Schedule: 3-22-21 LAFCO hearing.  
Approved without Protest 

Consultants: MNS and Rincon are working for 
Carmel Valley Manor to permit 
and design the project. 

Contractor: N/A 

 

 
Photo: View of proposed sewer line realignment  

  
Project Number: 19-13 
Project Name: Upper Rancho Cañada Pipe 

Relocation  
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lathér 
Status: Construction Starting June 14th 
Project Description: This project relocates an existing 

sewer trunk line that serves the 
eastern most assets of the District 
and is located within the proposed 
County Park at Rancho Cañada. 
The trunk line varies in size from a 
12-inch to 8-inch diameter and is 
made of Truss pipe material that 
was installed in the early 1970's.  
The pipe is damaged in many 
locations, has capacity issues, and 
was identified as a priority in the 
Asset Management Plan. 

Department: Collection 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$1,822,991 
Cumulative Spent: 
$146,433                 

FY Budget: 
$1,760,000 

FY Spent: 
$83,442 

Other Entities: Monterey Regional Park District 
Permits Required: Environmental Review 
Challenges: Providing a design that allows 

CAWD access to assets and is 
acceptable to the Park District. 

Schedule: Design FY 19/20.  Construct FY 
20/21. 

Consultants: MNS Engineering 
Rincon Environmental 

  

70



 
Photo: Existing air diffuser system 

  
Project Number: 19-19 
Project Name: WWTP – Aeration Basin 

Improvements 
Project Location: Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Waggoner 

Status: Materials Onsite Pending 
Installation in June 

Project 
Description: 

The Aeration Basins 4A & 4B need 
to have additional diffusers installed 
to ensure the proper air (oxygen) 
transfer into the wastewater to 
support the aerobic microorganisms 
in the basins.  

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$40,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$9,030 

FY Budget: 
$40,000 

FY Spent: 
$9,030 

Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 0% of project cost.  

Other Entities: CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project 

Permits 
Required: 

No permits as project is 
preventative maintenance project 

Challenges: Weather conditions and Scheduling 

Schedule: • Design is complete 
• Materials ordered and received  
• Construction anticipated for 

Spring 2021 
Consultants: In house (Design Plant Engineer), 

Environetics for Baffles 
Contractor: TBD 

 

 

 

Photo: Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and 
Environmental Enhancement (CRFREE) 

  
Project Number: 19-21 
Project Name: Carmel River FREE Mitigation 
Project Location: Carmel River Lagoon 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Design/CEQA/Developing Funding 

Agreement 
Project 
Description: 

The CRFREE Project intends to 
create a new river channel in the 
Carmel River lagoon floodplain 
which will significantly impact 
existing wastewater pipelines which 
cross the lagoon. To fully mitigate 
impacts from CRFREE the pipelines 
which are currently crossing over a 
portion of the lagoon are proposed 
to be installed underground using 
Horizontal Directional Drilling 
construction methods.   

Department: Engineering 
Financial: Grant Budget: 

$750,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$217,963 

Grant FY Budget: 
$750,000 

FY Spent: 
$217,963 

** Project is being funded by CRFREE initiated grants 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: Monterey County 
Permits Required: Coastal Commission, CA Fish and 

Wildlife, Army Corp of Engineers, 
Reginal Water Quality Control 
Board (RWQCB) 

Challenges: Construction near Environmentally 
Sensitive Habitat and obtaining new 
Easement from State Parks 

Schedule: • Design and CEQA anticipated 
completion Summer 2021 

• Construction anticipated in 
Summer 2022 

Consultants: Design: Kennedy Jenks and Staheli 
Trenchless 
CEQA: Johnson Marigot 

Contractor: Pending 
  

71



 

Photo: Admin Building Permit Desk 
  
Project Number: 20-01 
Project Name: Administration Building COVID 

Control Improvements 
Project Location: Administration Building 
Project Manager: Treanor/Foley 
Status: Complete 
Project 
Description: 

HVAC Improvements to control 
airborne viruses, enclosure of 
permit desk to eliminate contact 
between staff and visitors.  

Department: Administration 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$75,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$62,824 

FY Budget: 
$75,000 

FY Spent: 
$62,824 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: None 
Permits Required: Building Permits 
Challenges: Emerging science around COVID-19 
Schedule: • Design June and July 2020 

• Construction complete 
Consultants: Design: Davner Engineering 

Contractor: Coast Counties Glass 

 

 

 

 

Photo: WWTP Stormwater Pump Station 
  
Project Number: 20-02 
Project Name: WWTP Stormwater Pollution 

Prevention Plan Update 
Project Location: Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor/Dias 
Status: Complete 
Project 
Description: 

Update to the existing CAWD 
WWTP Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plan as required by the 
National Pollution Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) 
General Stormwater Permit  

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$35,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$23,923 

FY Budget: 
$35,000 

FY Spent: 
$23,923 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: None 
Permits Required: Part of General Stormwater Permit 
Challenges: None 
Schedule: • Plan Development in 2021 
Consultants: Kennedy Jenks Consultants 

Contractor: N/A 

  

72



 

Photo: River Watch logo 
  
Project Number: 20-05 
Project Name: River Watch Agreement 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lathér 
Status: Work in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

Work with collections to provide 
data that is needed to satisfy the 
milestones in the agreement with 
River Watch. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

N/A 
Cumulative Spent: 
N/A 

FY Budget: 
N/A 

FY Spent: 
N/A 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: River Watch 
Permits Required: none 
Challenges: CCTV scheduling deadlines.  The 

Board agreed to increase staffing by 
1 FTE to assist us in meeting the 
required schedule.  New employee 
started 11-20-20.  Received 1 yr. 
extension from River Watch due to 
COVID-19. 

Schedule:  Due date June 2023 
Consultants:  

Contractor: N/A 

 

 

 

 

Photo: LT Capital Schedule 
  
Project Number: 20-06 
Project Name: Collections 20-Year CIP 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lathér 
Status: Work in Progress 
Project 
Description: 

Utilize updated sewer line 
inspection information and flow 
modeling to develop a 20-year 
Construction Improvement Plan  

Department: Collections 
Projection of 
Total Capital 
Costs-20Yr 
$60,000,000 

Construction 
Costs: 
$50,000,000 

Administration 
Costs: $10,000,000 
(20% engineering, 
legal, admin) 

Financial: Cumulative 
15YR Budget: 
EST $30M 

Cumulative Spent: 
N/A 

FY Budget: 
N/A 

FY Spent: 
N/A 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: River Watch 
Permits Required: none 
Challenges:  
Schedule: 2020 - 2040 
Consultants: West Yost 

Contractor: N/A 

  

73



 

  Photo: Looking at Pump Station Exterior 
  
Project Number: 20-07 
Project Name: Bay/Scenic Pump Station 

Rehabilitation 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lathér 
Status: In Design 
Project Description: Remodel the interior of the 

pump station and update 
SCADA panel to remove from 
areas prone to flooding. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$600,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$100,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal 
Permits Required: Exemptions from CEQA & 

Coastal 
Challenges: Traffic Control 
Schedule: Design 2021, Construct 2022 
Consultants: Pending 

Contractor: Pending 

 

 

Photo: Pipe Bursting Limits on Scenic 
  
Project Number: 20-08 
Project Name: Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting - 

Ocean to Bay 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lathér 
Status: In Design 
Project Description: Replace approximately 4,950 

linear feet of existing 6-inch 
clay pipe with a new 8-inch 
(HDPE) Includes manhole 
rehabilitation. 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$1,400,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$200,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal 
Permits Required: Exemptions from CEQA & 

Coastal 
Challenges: Traffic Control 
Schedule: Design 2021, Construct 2022 
Consultants: Pending 

Contractor: Pending MNS 

  

74



 
Photo: WWTP Aerial Showing Eucalyptus Trees Around 

Perimeter 
  
Project Number: 21-01 
Project Name: WWTP Eucalyptus  Pruning 

Project Location: Wastewater Treatment 
Plant 

Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Biological Surveys / 

Pending Bidding in Non-
Nesting Season 

Project Description: Trim Eucalyptus Trees 
around WWTP to control 
overgrowth of trees and 
mitigate spread of non-
native tree. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$180,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$180,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: 0% 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits Required: Coastal Commission 
Notification, County Tree 
Cutting Permit 

Challenges:  
Schedule: Tree Trimming anticipated 

during non-nesting season 
(fall-winter 21/22) 

Consultants: Burleson Consulting 
(Environmental 
Monitoring) 
Frank Ono (Arborist) 

  
Contractor: TBD 

 

 

 

Photo: Sewer Line Repair 
  
Project Number: 21-02 
Project Name: 2021 Pipeline Spot Repairs 
Project Location: Collection System 
Project Manager: Lathér 
Status: Design In-House 
Project 
Description: 

Repairs to damaged sections of pipe 
at various locations throughout the 
District as noted in sewer video 
inspections 

Department: Collections 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$150,000 (FY21-22) 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$150,000 (FY21-22) 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: none 
Challenges: Traffic control in area of town, 

depth of repair. 
Schedule: Complete by June 2021 
Consultants: N/A 

Contractor: N/A 

 

  

75



 

Photo: Impressed Current Rectifier  
  
Project Number: 21-03 
Project Name: Cathodic Protection Testing 
Project Location: Treatment Plant 
Project Manager: Treanor 
Status: Testing Complete – Evaluation 

of Results Pending 
Project Description: Testing and evaluation of 

existing 50-year old impressed 
current cathodic protection 
system for WWTP Ocean 
Outfall, and improvements 
design. 

Department: Treatment 
Financial: Cumulative Budget: 

$30,000 
Cumulative Spent: 
$0 

FY Budget: 
$30,000 

FY Spent: 
$0 

Reclamation Share: 0% 
Other Entities: N/A 
Permits Required: None 
Challenges: None 
Schedule: Complete by June 2021 
Consultants: Trident Corrosion Engineering 

Contractor: N/A 

 

76



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From: Ed Waggoner                                             

Operations Superintendent 
 
Date:  May 27, 2021 
 
Subject: Monthly Operations Report – April 2021 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 

Plant Operation 
 

Treatment Plant: 
• The treatment plant operations staff has continued finishing up projects and 

concentrating on Preventative Maintenance Work Orders during the month of 
April. This includes the implementation of the Operations Flood Preparation 
Standard Operating Procedures from the Plant Engineer. 

• (Project 18-05) Programmable Logic Controller/Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition (PLC/SCADA) Operations staff has been meeting and working 
with Maintenance and Frisch Engineering on the upgrades and programming 
of the PLC/SCADA System. 

 
Reclamation: 

• Staff has continued preventative maintenance work on pumps, motors, and 
any equipment that needs maintenance for the Microfiltration and Reverse 
Osmosis Systems.  

• Staff completed Clean-in-Place (CIP) using Enzyme cleans on Microfiltration 
Cells 1, 2 and 3. All cells cleaned successfully with Trans Membrane Pressures 
(TMPs) pressures ranging between 5.7 to 8.5 pounds per square inch (psi). 

• Final repair of Blend Line with Belzona pipe wrap completed with system in 
full operation. 

• Staff slowly returned stored storm water from Anaerobic Digester #1 back into 
the treatment plant to be processed by the Reclamation Facility for golf course 
irrigation. 

 

  

77



Training: 
• Staff is continuing to complete online training at the treatment facility from 

Target Solutions as Carmel Area Wastewater District implements its new 
safety policies for the Exposure Control Plan updates for the COVID-19 virus. 

• Staff continues to participate in a scheduled tailgate safety meeting with 
Collections leading the way by holding the meetings in the truck bays so social 
distancing can be practiced.  

• Staff received Mainsaver training from Joe Grassi on April 12 and 13 on the 
Inventory and Spare parts Module. 
 

Capital Improvement:  
• Staff continues working with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor (CAWD), on 

Project #18-01, the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding 
Tank Replacement Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, 
Headworks, Blower Building, Chlorination/Dechlorination Building, Effluent 
Building, Digester No. 1, Digester No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering 
Building. 

 
Meetings Attended 

• No outside meetings for the month of April. 
 

Discharge Permit Violations 
• There were no Reclamation Permit 93-72 discharge violations for the month of 

March 2021. 
• There were no Violations of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 

System (NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 within the 
month of March 2021. 

• Staff has received no feedback from Central Coast Regional Water Quality 
Control Board on the submitted Toxicity Reduction Evaluation (TRE) Work 
Plan for Order No. RCA0047996 as set forth in Section V.2.a. Toxic Reduction 
Requirements on November 11, 2020. This plan is currently under review by 
the Central Coast Executive Officer to be certified for future use if needed. 

• Staff contacted Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board requesting 
an updated timeline for the renewal of the following Permits. Reclamation 
Permit 93-72 and NPDES Order No. R3-2014-0012. The contact person with the 
Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board stated that it could be one 
to two more years before new permits would be approved. Until such time 
CAWD needs to continue operating and reporting under Permits 93-72 and R3-
2014-0012. 

 
FUNDING 
 
N/A-Informational item only 

78



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 
 
Date:  May 27, 2021 
 
Subject: Monthly Maintenance Report – April 2021 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Maintenance Projects in Progress/Completed 
 

• (Project 18-06) The blower and aeration basin Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition (SCADA) screens have been migrated. Improvements include 
automated lead/lag of the Turblex blowers, simplified alarming and better process 
control of the dissolved oxygen content in the aeration basins. Staff has contacted 
Blower-Compressor-Vacuum (BCV) Systems to assist with tuning the system to 
optimize energy demand while minimizing risk of surging the blowers.  
 

• Update: A minor leak was discovered on an 8” pipe connection during the spot 
coating maintenance in the contact channel basement pipe gallery. Staff applied a 
temporary patch and the plant engineer recommended pipe wrapping as a 
permanent solution. Staff is scheduled a planning meeting for the removal of the 
obsolete chemical piping and to develop a plan to drain the piping so the repair can 
be completed.   
 

• (Project 18-11) The 30-kilowatt microturbine is available but currently  not running. 
The 65-kilowatt microturbine is running and able to consume all the available 
digester gas produced. The system is in review by staff to determine future goals to 
add capacity so more electricity can be generated. 
 
 
 
 

  

79



• Update: A replacement flow meter was ordered for the natural gas line to the 
digester boiler. Once installed it will be integrated into the SCADA System and 
provide real time flow values when the boiler is consuming natural gas. This work 
was rescheduled for May. A certified welder is required to install the new piping.  

 
Upcoming Maintenance Projects 
 

• (Project 19-01) Mathews Mechanical is scheduled to remove an obsolete mixer from 
the chlorination contact channels. After removal of the mixer a cover will be 
fabricated to prevent possible flood water from entering the effluent flow stream. 
Mathews Mechanical will also be tasked with replacing the remaining original 6” 
valves in the headworks pump room. The valves are past their useful life and 
provide isolation for the primary clarifiers and headworks pumps. This is 
considered a safety and maintenance improvement since the existing valves were so 
difficult to operate that they posed a strain risk to staff. The new valves have gear 
reduction wheels.  

 
• (Project 18-05) SCADA work continues with support from Frisch engineering. The 

effluent pump station and sodium hypochlorite are scheduled to be migrated next. 
The treatment plant SCADA will then be fully migrated to the Ignition platform.  

 
Staff Development 
 

• Staff is gathering information on employee performance management (PM) systems. 
After staff reviews the available offerings, a recommendation will be provided to the 
General Manager. This would replace and expand on the existing Excel based 
annual employee performance evaluation. A PM system would provide a software 
platform to continually monitor employee development, set and track goals with 
metrics, and streamline the performance review process.  
 

• A cyber security network team has been formed. This team includes a representative 
from each department. The team will work together to develop Internet Technology 
response plans and be cross trained to respond to failures and cyber threats.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80



 
 
 
 

Work Order Metrics 
Preventive Maintenance       
         
Total Work Orders Generated    388  
Total Work Orders Closed/Done    370  
Total Work Orders Still Open    18  
Percentage of Work Orders Completed    95.36%  
         
Corrective Maintenance        
 

          
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
  Emergency 6      
  Critical  5      
  Urgent 16      
  Routine 20      
  Projects 10      

 
 
FUNDING 
N/A- Informational item only 

81



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 

Date:  May 27, 2021 
 

Subject:          General Engineering  
   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Receive Report- Informational only; no action required. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
This report is provided to update the Board on current engineering activities during the 
month of April 2021. 
 
General Engineering 
 
The Principal Engineer continues to work on projects related to the 2021 Annexation, 
including Yankee Point, Carmel Valley Manor and Corona Road.   
 
Carmel Valley Manor (CVM) is continuing to work on their project to connect to the 
District and plan to construct in 2021.  They have submitted 100% plans and specification 
for review by staff. They are working on the easement agreement for the pump station 
located on the Quail Lodge property, working with our attorneys to develop a repayment 
plan with CAWD for future connections to the pipeline, and have been working with the 
Principal Engineer to calculate their connection fee.  There has been a great deal of interest 
by owners adjacent to this project regarding connecting to the sewer. 
 
The Yankee Point/Spindrift agreement has been signed and the engineering contract is 
signed.  The project kickoff meeting was completed on March 3, 2021 and the engineer is 
actively working towards completing the study. 
 
Corona Road project funds have been collected and the contracts have been sent to the 
consultants.  We are currently waiting for Monterey Bay Engineering to sign their contract 
in order to kick-off the project.   

  

82



 
During this period, the Principal Engineer continued to work with the Monterey Regional 
Parks District and the Santa Lucia Conservancy to develop a satisfactory easement 
agreement.  This entailed changes to the design and pipeline alignment, as well as defining 
parking locations for workers and signage.  As of May 14, all easement agreements are 
fully executed.  
 
The Pretreatment Ordinance has been provided to the Ordinance Committee for review 
and the Principal Engineer is working with the members of the committee to select a date 
for meeting in June to discuss the ordinance. 
 
Utilizing our recently developed manhole inspection Geographical Information Systems 
(GIS) application, we have determined that 8 manholes on 2nd Avenue that are located near 
Pescadero Creek should be lined soon.  They are all brick manholes that are over 80 years 
old and are in “Poor” condition.  We plan to proceed with the lining project in June 2021 
and it should take 5 days and cost under $30,000.  The rehabilitation work will be utilizing 
a monolithic spray application of a high-build, rigid, and solvent free polyurethane coating.  
 
The Scenic Drive pipe bursting project design has begun with plans to start a geotechnical 
investigation at the end of May.  It consists of completing 5 borings at various locations 
along the alignment and will take one day to complete.  We will be providing door hangers 
regarding the work to homes in the vicinity of the drilling locations a few days prior to 
initiating the work, as requested by the City Public Works Director. 
 
Meetings 
 
The Principal Engineer has been attending meetings and actively participating in the 
review and comments of the proposed updated Sanitary Sewer System Waste Discharge 
Regulation for collections systems.   
 
As the Collections Committee Chair, the Principal Engineer participated in virtual tours of 
the top six collections systems that were competing for the “Collections System of the Year” 
title.  The interviews were completed on April 2, 2021 and took an entire day. 
 
FUNDING 
N/A- Informational item only 
 
 

83



Resolutions 

84



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  May 27, 2021 
 
Subject: Reclamation Budget 2021-22 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution approving the 
CAWD/PBCSD Fiscal Year 2021-22 Reclamation Project Budget. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget was approved at the 
Technical Advisory Committee group level on May 4, 2021. Final approval was given by 
the Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) at its May 11, 2021 meeting. A copy of the 
Project 2021-22 Budget is attached. 
 
Items approved by the RMC are brought to the CAWD or PBCSD Board, as appropriate, 
for approval and any applicable resolution. 
 
 
FUNDING 
 
All funding is covered by the Reclamation Project or by the Pebble Beach Company and 
Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group, as project guarantors. 
 
 
Attachment: 

• CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project 2021-22 Budget 

  

85



CAWD/PBCSD RECLAMATION 

PROJECT 

2021-22 BUDGET 

 Reviewed by Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) on May 4, 2021 

Presented to Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) on May 11, 2021 

86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-25 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CAWD/PBCSD FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 
RECLAMATION PROJECT BUDGET 

 
-oOo- 

 

WHEREAS, the attached CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project Fiscal Year 2021-22 

Budget was approved at the Technical Advisory Committee group level and final 

approval was given by the Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) at its May 11, 

2021 meeting; and 

WHEREAS, items approved by the RMC are brought to the CAWD or PBCSD 

Board, as appropriate, for approval and any applicable resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District that it does hereby adopt the attached CAWD/PBCSD 

Reclamation Project Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 27, 2021, by the following vote: 

AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

     ________________________________________________ 

     President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Secretary of the Board 

121



 
Staff Report 
 
 
To:   Board of Directors   
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager   
 
Date:  May 27, 2021 
 
Subject: Sewer Connection Fee for FY 2021-22 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution approving an increase in the 
basic residential unit connection fee to $7,532.64 as detailed in the attached Schedule of 
Connection Fees effective June 1, 2021.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Sewer connection fees are set by ordinance in accordance with the California Health and Safety 
Code Section 5474.  Connection fees are charged to recover a portion of the capital costs for the 
treatment facility from future users.  Per the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) 
guide for grant funded facilities, connection fees may be used to recover debt service costs if the 
user had been connected when the treatment works began operation.  Connection fees may not 
be used to recover excessive cost from future users in order to reduce charges to current users.  
Connection fees may not be used to fund replacement costs.  Therefore, the District calculations 
are based on the acquisition cost of its plant assets. 
 
The accompanying summary computation shows that the recommended connection fee 
(performed as of the last full year of fixed asset data available) has increased 12.5% from 
$6,693.51 on 2-01-20 to $7,532.64 on 6-01-21.  Detailed computation spreadsheets are available at 
the Board’s request.  Because CAWD is a built-out District it is estimated that the increase of 
$839.13 per connection fee will not result in any substantial revenue gains for the year.  Capital 
Improvement Projects (CIP) are not included in the computation until they are complete and 
moved into Fixed Assets.   

 

122



 
Although we have historically calculated connection fees each year effective July 1st,  based on 
the last full year of fixed asset data; however, there is nothing in Ordinance 85-02 that prohibits 
adjusting the fee at an alternate time during the year.  The exact language of the Ordinance is “… 
which shall be determined annually, or more frequently if this Board deems it appropriate…”   
 
The District’s total assets are reflected on the books at a cost basis of $98,271,473.  This figure 
includes all Reclamation tertiary and secondary facilities and the Collection system.  It does not 
include the impact of reductions from receipt of grant funds and reimbursement from PBCSD.  It 
does not include any increased land appraisal value.  It is generally acknowledged that the 
replacement cost for total Plant assets would be about $125-150 million. 
 
The purpose of the connection calculation is to determine what a new connector would be 
expected to pay for his/her fair share of treatment and disposal assets.  The calculation is per 
equivalent residential unit based on original construction costs adjusted to present day value.  It 
does not attempt to recover replacement costs because of State Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB) direction to charge for acquisition value only.  A new connector becomes part owner of 
the District upon payment of the fees because he is paying a pro-rata share of the cost of assets 
used to treat the property owner’s sewage. 
 
Please note; that for the purposes of this calculation office equipment, vehicles and structures are 
not fully depreciated but are instead assigned a minimum salvage value of 10% for equipment 
and vehicles and 25% for structures.  This assumption ensures that all assets will retain some 
value in the computation regardless of whether they are fully depreciated.  
 
The formula for the connection fee, as suggested by Kennedy/Jenks/Chilton (engineering 
consultant), starts with assets of $98,271,473 and excludes all Reclamation tertiary (Reclamation 
Secondary facilities are included) and Collection assets to arrive at applicable connection fee 
assets of $49,188,042. Actual replacement costs for these assets would be $65 - $80 million.  
 
According to the formula the applicable assets are then depreciated according to appropriate 
lives (down to a stated minimum), updated by the current Engineering News Record  (ENR)  
Construction index and decreased by grant funds received and reimbursement from PBCSD.  
This mathematical process reduces the applicable assets from $49,188,042 down to a local present 
value cost of $25,109,186.  To this is added the District's current assets of $27,804,237, for a total 
value of applicable assets of $39,540,734. 
 
 

123



 
A connection fee per gallon per day is determined by dividing $39,540,734 by 2,000,000 gallons 
per day (gpd), which is CAWD's share of the permitted authorized flows. The 2 million gpd 
figure is CAWD's 2/3 share of permitted flows as opposed to actual flows or designed flows.   
The resulting figure is then multiplied by 235 gpd (the average daily flow per equivalent 
residential unit) to arrive at the actual connection fee per equivalent residential unit. 
 
This calculation results in a connection fee per equivalent residential unit (ERU) of $7,532.64.   
The reasons for the increase include an increase in the ENR index of 5.40% from 2019 and an 
increase in current assets increase of 15.54 % over 2019.   The current assets can vary greatly from 
year-to-year depending on cash on hand, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, and other cash 
items.   
 
COMPARISON CONNECTION FEES 
The SWRCB survey of Single-Family Dwelling (SFD) Connection Fee for the last year available 
FY 2016-17 average is $4,297.26.  Monterey County average connection fee for a Single-Family 
Dwelling is $4,818.97 for the FY 2016-17 survey.  This is the last available report from the State 
Water Resources Control Board. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. 2021 Calculations 
2. Connection Fee Summary 2021 
3. Schedule of Connection Fees 07-01-20 

 

124



125



CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 
CONNECTION FEE CALCULATIONS 

 
Based on audited figures for capital assets at June 30, 2020  

effective June 1, 2021 
 
Balance of applicable assets - June 30, 2020        98,271,473 
 
Depreciated Value................................................  50,786,801 
ENR Updated Value............................................  81,147,395 
Local Value - Net after grant funds.....................        79,328,507 
 
Excluded Assets 
 Reclamation – Tertiary Structures  35,384,151 
 Reclamation – O&M         460,305 
 Pump Station Structures                1,170,301   
 Pump Station Equipment        949,252 
 Sewer System     11,119,420 
   
 
CAWD's share - Net of PBCSD reimbursement............                 25,109,186.00 
 
Add Current assets balances at June 30, 2019..................      38,998,419.77 

----------------- 
(A)  Total value of applicable assets.............................      64,107,605.77 
 
(B)  Average daily flow per equivalent residential unit 

as prescribed by the County.............................. 235 gpd 
 
(C)  CAWD's share of authorized flows: 

2/3 x 3 mgd....................................................... 2,000,000 gpd 
 
(D)  Connection fee per gallon per day: 

(A) divided by (C)............................................ $32.05 
 
        Connection fee per Equivalent Residential Unit 

(B) X (D)...........................................................      $    7,532.64 
=========== 

Note: Applicable assets exclude Collection sewers, pipelines and pump stations, and the tertiary  
portion of the Reclamation Project. 
 
Formula used was suggested by Kennedy/Jenks/Chilton and has been used since 1985. 
    

126



 
 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-26 
 
 A RESOLUTION SPECIFYING THE DISTRICT SEWER CONNECTION 
 AND ANNEXATION FEES, AS ADOPTED BY ORDINANCE NO. 
 85-2, COMMENCING JUNE 1, 2021 
 
 -oOo- 
 
 WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 85-2 establishes and adopts sewer connection and 

annexation fees for the Carmel Area Wastewater District, pursuant to a general formula 

for the determination of said fees as set forth in that ordinance, with said fees to be 

adjusted annually, or more frequently, based upon certain factors and determinations to 

be made by the District Manager, including the current value of District assets; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District that, based upon the revised information now presented to it, 

the District’s sewer connection and annexation fees, as adopted and established by 

Ordinance No. 85-2, are hereby specified to be $7,532.64 per equivalent residential unit 

or per acre of vacant land, commencing June 1, 2021, and continuing until revised by 

further action of this Board. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District at a regular meeting duly held on May 27, 2021, by the following 

vote: 

 AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 
 NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 
 ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
          President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
 Secretary of the Board 

127



 Other Items & Information/Discussion

128



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  May 27, 2021 
 
Subject: Approval to Engage a Real Estate Professional 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommend the Board approve a motion authorizing the following: 
 

• Approval to engage a real estate professional to assist the District in finding a viable 
parcel to relocate the treatment facility due to sea level rise. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
As a condition of the District’s Coastal Commission permit #3-82-199-A8 (February 2020) 
we have been directed to explore long-term solutions for the Plant given potential flooding 
scenarios in the future, including options for potential future relocation.  The Coastal 
Commission has designated a planning horizon of 2050 that along with sea level rise 
scenarios, as per the Ocean Protection Council and the Commission’s recent guidance, we 
must also address: 1) flooding from a closed lagoon; 2) flooding from a closed lagoon with 
storm; and/or 3) riverine flooding from the Carmel River.  Given that Monterey County is 
under pressure to cease sandbar management and “solve” the issue of flooding of the 
homes in the 4th Edition neighborhood it is likely the District will need to move its 
operations. 
 
There are a limited number of available parcels in the Carmel area that would be suitable 
for our purposes.  And of those available we are likely to find that it may take a 
considerable amount of time and effort to go through the necessary zoning, permitting, 
environmental review, etc. before we can consider if the parcel is viable.   
 
Staff is taking the position that to perform the analysis of parcel viability versus some other 
option it would be better to have a specific parcel under consideration rather than 
something  undefined.  Due to the limited number of suitable parcels available, the District 
should look at purchasing as an investment strategy for the future.  Either we move the 
facility to that location or, if not, it is an asset that we can sell in the future. 

  

129



Therefore, staff is asking first for the authorization to begin the process of acquiring 
property in the Carmel area that meets our requirements.  This would require engaging an 
individual or firm with the expertise in commercial real estate that could shepherd us 
through this process. 
 
Any final decision on purchase will be brought before the full Board. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Unknown currently. 
 
There has been discussion at the Budget Committee level where we have speculated that 
the entire process from purchase, through zoning, permitting, etc. could be as much as $5 - 
$7M.  Funding will come from District reserves. 

130



 
STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  May 27, 2021 
 
Subject: Pebble Beach Community Services District – Regular Board Meeting April 

30, 2021 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Agenda items from the April 30, 2021 meeting that are of specific interest to this 
District: 

 
• Total cash balance at the end of March 2021 was $15.1M; of that amount $14.5M was 

designated for Capital Acquisition and Outlay Reserves.  Property taxes comprise 
roughly 85% of District revenues with user fees making up 12%.   
 

• The Board approved the District’s 2021-22 Long Term Capital Outlay Program.  The 
anticipated 15 year capital costs for CAWD are $8,340,000, those costs are front 
loaded in the next two years due to CAWD’s Elec/Mech Rehab & Sludge Holding 
Tank Project. 
 

• The Board approved the District’s 2021-22 Long Term Financial Plan.  The objectives 
are to identify the District’s current and estimated future resources, provide a 
funding method on a “pay-as-you-go” basis, set criteria and target levels for 
reserves designated for various purposes, and to provide a projection of the 
District’s long term financial position. 
 

• The Board adopted a resolution approving the 2021-22 Preliminary Budget and set 
the Final Budget Hearing for June 25, 2021.  The sewer user fees are proposed to be 
increased by 9.0% from $24.50 to $26.70.  The estimated annual revenue that will be 
generated by the proposed fees is $1,265,000.  And additional $2,445,000 is to be 
financed from property tax revenues, $1,460,000 from capital outlay reserve and 
$172,000 from investment and other revenue.  User fees cover approximately 16% of 
the cost of providing sewer service. 

 

131



 
• Forest Lake Reservoir held 106 MG (million gallons) of recycled water or 92% of 

permitted capacity. Current storage volume is 7% below the historic average of 114 
MG. 
 

• Total irrigation water demand for the 2021 calendar year through March was 67 AF 
(acre feet). Total demand for the calendar year is 8% above the 5-year average of 62 
AF through the month of March.  Forest Lake Reservoir reached maximum capacity 
in early March and was subsequently taken offline.  Due to lack of precipitation in 
mid to late March the plant was brought back online just prior to the onset of the 
2021 irrigation season.  Steady and consistent drawdown of Forest Lake Reservoir 
commenced at the beginning of April approximately two weeks ahead of normal.     
 

• Average daily wastewater flow of 330,000 gallons per day (GPD) was measured in 
March at the PBCSD-Carmel gate. This represents 28% of the total flow at the 
CAWD treatment facility. The measured PBCSD flow was 50% below the five-year 
average of 658,000 GPD for the month of March; the CAWD total flow was 33% 
below the five-year average of 1,732,000 GPD for March.   
 

• The 4th Fairway Diversion was taken offline at the beginning of March and remained 
offline until the beginning of April.  The three wells MPCC No. 8, MPCC No. 9, and 
MPCC Bird Rock were brought back online in mid-March.   Total production for the 
2021 calendar year through mid-April is approximately 2.5 million gallons. 
 

• The Board approved the following modifications to the employee benefit programs: 
(1) provide employees with term life and accidental dismemberment insurance with 
coverage not to exceed $200K through Association of California Water Agencies 
Joint Powers Insurance Authority, (2) separate the employee disability insurance 
program from the PBCSD Supplemental Retirement Plan, and (3) appoint the 
General Manager as a Trustee to the PBCSD Supplemental Retirement and the 
Deferred Compensation Plans.  
 

• The Board approved a resolution authorizing the General Manager to execute a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the City of Pacific Grover related to a 
proposed annexation of a property located at 801 Sunset Drive that will allow the 
District to retain existing wastewater services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

132



• Average daily wastewater flows measured in million gallons per day (MG) show: 
 

MONTH TOTAL CAWD FLOW PBCSD FLOW PBCSD 
July - 20 37.211 25.504 11.707 31.461% 
Aug – 20 36.386 24.877 11.509 31.630% 
Sept - 20 33.559 23.082 10.477 31.220% 
Oct – 20 32.551 23.689 8.862 27.225% 
Nov-20 31.644 23.089 8.555 27.035% 
Dec-20 30.572 21.732 8.840 28.915% 
Jan - 21 37.781 26.537 11.244 29.761% 
Feb – 21 36.638 23.536 13.102 35.761% 
Mar - 21 35.896 25.666 10.230 28.499% 

Total 312.238 217.712 94.526 30.274% 
 

133



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  May 27,2021 
 
Subject: Summary of Reclamation Management 

Committee (RMC) Meeting May 11, 2021 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
No action required – this is informational only. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The RMC met to approve the budget for fiscal year 2021-22.  Adjustments had been 
suggested at the Technical Advisory Committee on May 4, 2021 and were incorporated in 
the final document.  Cost of water for the coming year will be $2,884,000 per acre foot and 
$4,116,000 for the fixed component allocated by percentage. 
 
Mr. Grover presented the financial statements for the nine months ended March 31, 2021.  
Water sales are $15K over budget, 620 acre feet (AF) of water have been sold compared to 
697 AF last year.  Plant expenses, distribution expenses, and other expenses are all under 
budget. 
 
Mr. Young provided an overview of Reclamation Project operations, including steps 
recommended by Trussell Technology and maintenance updates.  In general, the system is 
performing quite well. 
 
Mr. Becker of PBCSD gave an overview of Capital Improvement Projects at Forest Lake.  
The chlorine feed system has been replaced and fencing repairs around the reservoir were 
completed in March.  Staff plans to restore damaged pavement at Poppy Hills before the 
end of June.  Mr. Becker also gave a summary of Forest Lake Reservoir storage volume – 
this year irrigation season has started roughly two weeks earlier than in prior years.  The 
golf courses are anticipating water rationing and there were questions for Mr. Dave Stoldt 
of MPWMD about potentially purchasing potable water.  This may be the last year it is 
possible to purchase potable because the limits on pumping in Carmel River Basin will be 
in effect; however, he recommended we address this issue as we get closer to early fall. 

  

134



STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  May 27, 2021 
 
Subject: Summary of Monterey County Treasurer 

Report dated 03-31-21 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
No action required – this is informational only. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Economic conditions in the quarter ending March 31, 2021 were characterized by the 
following factors:  improving economic data supported by an additional $1.9 trillion in 
relief funds from the American Rescue Plan Act, a dramatic decrease in COVID-19 caseload 
as vaccinations ramped up, expectations for increased inflation fueled by a combination of 
a stronger recovery and additional stimulus, and an increase in long-term Treasury yields 
to pre-pandemic levels. 
 
Significant intervention from the Federal Reserve since the beginning of 2021 is expected to 
continue.  The vaccine rollout, accommodative monetary policy, and the new $1.9 trillion of 
fiscal stimulus all point to continued improvement in U.S. economic fundamentals.  The 
2021 Gross Domestic Product (GDP) projections have been revised up several times and 
current forecasts point to growth of 6% or more this year.  This optimism, however, has 
also translated into increased inflation expectations, particularly in the near term, which is 
likely to continue to put upward pressure on longer-term rates. 
 
On March 31, 2021, the Monterey County investment portfolio contained an amortized 
book value of $2,119,066,936 spread among 220 separate securities and funds. The par 
value of those funds was $2,109,458,019 with a market value of $2,119,066,936 or 100% of 
amortized book value.  The portfolio’s net earned income yield for the period was 0.99%. 
The portfolio produced an estimated quarterly income of $5,205,544 that will be distributed 
proportionately to all agencies participating in the investment pool.  The investment 
portfolio had a weighted average maturity of 539 days.  The County Treasury continues to 
use shorter term debt to provide portfolio liquidity and enhanced investment 
opportunities. 

  

135



 
PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS 

 09-30-20 12-31-20 03-31-21 
Total Assets $1,918,472,919.39 $2,227,736,412.70 $2,109,458,018.97 
Market Value $1,922,099,718.02 $2,236,498,742.36 $2,119,066,936.05 
Days to 
Maturity 

380 490 539 

Yield 1.61% 1.21% 0.99% 
Estimated 
Earnings 

$7,320,952.18 $6,205,140.10 $5,205,543.85 

 
The Monterey County Treasurer’s portfolio consists of fixed income investments, all of 
which are authorized by the State of California Government Code §53601. 
 

PORTFOLIO ASSET COMPOSITION 03-31-21 
Corporate Notes 12.9% 
Overnight Liquid Assets 19.8% 
US Treasuries 44.6% 
Federal Agencies 20.3% 
Commercial Paper 0.9% 
Negotiable CDs 0.5% 
Supranationals 1.1% 
Municipal Bonds 0.1% 
 
Future Strategy:  Given the volatile market environment related to the COVID-19 
pandemic, the Treasury has a “hold and see” approach, leaving maturing investments in 
short-term accounts for potential liquidity needs.  As the year proceeds and market 
conditions evolve, the portfolio will continue to be actively managed under the established 
tenets of safety and liquidity while seeking to maximize the rate of return. 
 
The investment portfolio was in compliance with all applicable provisions of state law and 
the adopted Investment Policy and contained sufficient liquidity to meet all projected 
outflows over the next six months. 
 
Note:  The Monterey County Treasurer Report is available on the Monterey County 
Treasury website.  
 

136

https://www.co.monterey.ca.us/government/departments-i-z/treasurer-tax-collector/treasury


STAFF REPORT 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  May 27, 2021 
 
Subject: Quarterly Progress Report (Jan – May 2021) 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
This report is informational only – no action is required.  The Board requested a quarterly 
update of progress made throughout the District.  This report is designed to offer a high- 
level view of the third quarter of calendar year 2021 plus overlap into May. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
General Management 

• The Coastal Commission amended permit was received.  This is a major event after 
2+ years of negotiations and allows CAWD to continue with its 
Electrical/Mechanical Rehab and Holding Sludge Tank Replacement Project. The 
Mitigated Negative Declaration was approved in January.  The authorization to bid 
was approved by the Board in April. 
 

• The District entered into contracts with Rincon Consultants and MNS Engineers for 
the Upper Rancho Canada Sewer Replacement Project #19-13.  This project was 
particularly difficult because of the hurdles faced in obtaining easements from both 
the Monterey Peninsula Regional Parks District and Santa Lucia Conservancy.  The 
Board approved the lowest bid in January 2021; however, staff had to work with 
both entities until May 2021 to receive the required easements.  
 

• The Hatton Canyon Pipeline was completed.  The Notice of Completion was filed, 
and staff is working on completing the grant accounting.   
 

• The Board formed an ad hoc committee to discuss potential transition from current 
site in the Lagoon.  There have been two meetings to date. 
 

• The Collection system is on track to CCTV all lines, exam and rate all manholes, and 
continue cleaning to meet the requirements of the River Watch Settlement.  The 
additional employee has been a considerable help in assisting us to meet these goals.  

  

137



• The COVID-19 Risk Mitigation and Response Plan continues to guide staff during 
these difficult times and was updated to reflect changes in best practices.  To date, 
there has been only one confirmed case of COVID-19 among staff.  
 

• The Annexation for Carmel Valley and Highlands is complete.  We anticipate 
Carmel Valley Manor sewer main extension will commence construction this 
summer.  And Corona Road extension has also seen movement – we have hired 
Monterey Bay Engineers and Denise Duffy & Associates to start work.   
 

• I participated in the Carmel Valley Association meeting and Carmel Valley Traffic 
Advisory meeting as a District representative for the Carmel Valley Manor project. 
 

• Staff continues to work with the County of Monterey on an agreement for Carmel 
River Floodplain Restoration and Enhancement Project (CRFREE) Project.   We have 
received the 60% design plans and held a technical meeting with the County to form 
the basis of negotiations on a Memo of Understanding.  The Notice of Intent to 
Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration was approved by the Board in April. 
 

• The Admin Project to build a protective wall and barrier at the front counter in the 
Administration building is complete.  The contractor did a wonderful job matching 
to the existing glass framing.  This protective barrier will not only serve to protect 
front desk staff from COVID-19 (and any future virus), but we believe it also serves 
as added security.  Unfortunately, the cleaning crew set the alarm off the first time 
they came back; but that is all taken care of now.  
 

• The District submitted two applications to CalOES for Public Safety/Power Shutoff 
grants.  First for a generator hookup at Reclamation and second for a battery bank at 
CAWD.  Unfortunately, neither application was approved. 
 

Financial Matters 
• Proposed a Section 115 Trust as mitigation for CalPERS continuing Unfunded 

Accrued Liability and normal contributions.  Board accepted the results of a Request 
for Proposals (RFP) but tabled authorization to fund.  Currently exploring other 
options for the plan. 
 

• Preliminary CAWD Budget and Rate Model for FY 2021-22 was approved by the 
Board in March.  There has been considerable discussion this year due to COVID-19 
and its impact on the community – most commercial rates increase by 1% and 
residential rates increase by 3.02%.  
 
 

138



• The Reclamation Budget was approved at the May 2021 Reclamation Management 
Meeting.   
 

• Cclean submitted an RFP for laboratory management/testing services.  Since CAWD 
is the lead agency we are responsible for this function.  Bids are due June 1st, and 
we will bring results to the Board at the June meeting for approval. 
 

• Surprisingly (because it is well past 90 days), we recovered the final $1,787 from 
Union Bank for the Reclamation Project.  We have moved all deposit accounts 
(CAWD & Reclamation) from Union Bank to Chase Bank and are pleased with the 
service to date.  
 

Personnel Management 
• Completed negotiations for employee health insurance, effective 01-01-21 with a 

commitment to submit a RFP for health services prior to next year.   
 

• Held a Cinco de Mayo luncheon for staff and the Board on May 5th.  Since we are not 
able to hold our regular BBQ; this was an alternative and served as a thank you to 
staff for their work during the pandemic. 
 

• Completed a major overhaul of the job description to give more detail to physical 
and environmental requirements.   This was a multi-month project with the intent to 
help us better manage workers’ compensation requirements.  First, the improved 
physical requirements will be an aid in the initial screening, it gives the physician a 
much better concept of the job requirements.  Second, in a return-to-work scenario 
after someone has been injured, it gives us a much better platform to plan and 
initiate a safe return-to-work for both the employee and the District.   
 

• We have initiated online training for Six Sigma.  While my preference would be for 
interactive and in-person training, that simply has not been possible during COVID-
19.  Therefore, there are three web sites that provide Six Sigma testing online.  All 
direct reports to the General Manager are required to have the White level 
completed by June 30th.  (One in dividual has already done so).  Then we will move 
on to the next level or the Yellow tier.  I do not believe that we will need everyone to 
proceed through the black belt master level, but certainly we will have everyone get 
through the Yellow level and then analyze next steps.  
 

• We have initiated an Interactive Session with those employees who have declined 
the COVID-19 vaccine.  At this time, it is not mandatory; however, those employees 
who decline will have to continue to exercise all precautions. 

 

139



Public & Community Relations 
• All public meetings have either stopped or are being held via ZOOM.   

 
• Potable Water and Sewer Agencies have formed a new manager’s group that will 

meet quarterly with the working group name of “Clean & Dirty Water”.  We will 
meet to discuss issues that focus on water issues. 
 

• I continue to attend all CSA 1, CSA 50, and SDA meetings even though they have all 
been virtual.  I also try to attend any community meetings held by Supervisor 
Adams, unfortunately the last one on May 13th conflicted with CSA 1 meeting so I 
was not able to attend.  The agenda was primarily about traffic issues in Carmel 
Valley, so I opted for the CSA 1 meeting as more relevant to the District at this time. 

 
• CAWD held two COVID-19 vaccine clinics and invited both PBCSD and Monterey 

One Water (M1W).  Although we had to rescind our invite to PBCSD because of 
their COVID-19 outbreak, we did have roughly 25 people from M1W attend.  It was 
very successful. 
 

140


	01.A  Board Packet Cover
	3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923

	01.B  Public Meeting Procedure
	03.A Trevor's Crystal Crucible Award Cert
	03.B CWEA award page for Trevor
	04.A 4-28-21 Spec mtg Minutes pnsn
	The Committee Discussed recommendations of Section 115 Trust options to be presented at the regular Board Meeting of April 29, 2021.

	04.B 04-29-21 Board Meeting Minutes
	CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS
	RESOLUTIONS

	05. PLACE HOLDER Bnk Stmt Rev
	06.  Stmt of Cash Receipts
	insert for CAWD Dispursements.pdf
	0421


	07.  CAWD Disbursements
	08.  Reclamation Disbursements
	09.  April FS
	10.A  Collections April 2021 Board Report
	STAFF REPORT
	FROM: Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent
	RECOMMENDATION

	Permits Issued
	Maintenance
	Line Cleaning Table
	CCTV Progress Graph (River Watch Settlement Agreement Target)
	Manhole Inspection Table
	Construction activities
	 Contractors removed the concrete vaults and exposed the force main and Air Release Valve  (ARV) so a condition assessment of the Districts ARV and valving could be completed.  The condition assessment will be used for a future project to upgrade the...
	General comments

	10.B  CCTV Map April 2021
	10.C  Cleaning Map April 2021
	11. Safety & Compliance Report - May 2021
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	12. Treatment Facility Operations Report
	13. Laboratory Board Report April 2021
	14. Implementation Plan Schedule 5-14-21
	15. Project Summaries 5-27-2021
	16.  Plant Operations Staff Report April 2021
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION
	Training:
	 Staff is continuing to complete online training at the treatment facility from Target Solutions as Carmel Area Wastewater District implements its new safety policies for the Exposure Control Plan updates for the COVID-19 virus.
	 Staff continues to participate in a scheduled tailgate safety meeting with Collections leading the way by holding the meetings in the truck bays so social distancing can be practiced.
	 Staff received Mainsaver training from Joe Grassi on April 12 and 13 on the Inventory and Spare parts Module.
	• Staff continues working with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor (CAWD), on Project #18-01, the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, ...
	Meetings Attended
	 No outside meetings for the month of April.
	Discharge Permit Violations
	• There were no Reclamation Permit 93-72 discharge violations for the month of March 2021.
	• There were no Violations of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 within the month of March 2021.
	FUNDING
	N/A-Informational item only

	17. Maintenance Staff Report - May 2021
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	18. Engineering Staff Report-May 2021
	19. Resolutions Section Break
	19.A Reclamation Budget 21-22 - Staff Report
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	19.B  Recl Budget 2021-22
	19.C RES 2020-25 Adopting  CAWD-PBCSD Reclamation Project Budget 2021-22
	20.A Staff Report Connection Fee 2021
	20.B  Connection Fee Calculations
	20.C  Connection Fee Summary 05-27-21
	20.D  Res 21-26 SewerConnectionFee-2021
	22. Other Section Break
	22.1 Engage Real Estate Professional 05-27-21
	23. PBCSD 04-30-21
	DISCUSSION
	Agenda items from the April 30, 2021 meeting that are of specific interest to this District:

	24.  RMC Meeting 05-11-21
	25. Mo Co Treasurer 03-31-21
	26. Quarterly Progress GM 05-27-21
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	26. Quarterly Progress GM 05-27-21.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION

	16.  Plant Operations Staff Report April 2021.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION
	DISCUSSION
	Training:
	 Staff is continuing to complete online training at the treatment facility from Target Solutions as Carmel Area Wastewater District implements its new safety policies for the Exposure Control Plan updates for the COVID-19 virus.
	 Staff continues to participate in a scheduled tailgate safety meeting with Collections leading the way by holding the meetings in the truck bays so social distancing can be practiced.
	 Staff received Mainsaver training from Joe Grassi on April 12 and 13 on the Inventory and Spare parts Module.
	• Staff continues working with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor (CAWD), on Project #18-01, the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, ...
	Meetings Attended
	 No outside meetings for the month of April.
	Discharge Permit Violations
	• There were no Reclamation Permit 93-72 discharge violations for the month of March 2021.
	• There were no Violations of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 within the month of March 2021.
	FUNDING
	N/A-Informational item only

	Blank Page



